

Date: Monday, 6 June 2016

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire,

SY2 6ND

Contact: Amanda Holyoak, Committee Officer

Tel: 01743 252718

Email: amandaholyoak@shropshire.gov.uk

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TO FOLLOW REPORT (S)

5 Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2016 as a correct record – TO FOLLOW





Agenda Item 5

SHOPSHIRE COUNCIL

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2016 10.00 am - 11.39 am

Responsible Officer: Amanda Holyoak

Email: amandaholyoak@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 252718

Present

Councillor Gerald Dakin (Chairman) Councillors John Cadwallader (Vice Chairman), Peter Adams, David Evans, Tracey Huffer, Heather Kidd, Pamela Moseley, Peggy Mullock, Peter Nutting and Madge Shineton

53 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

There were no apologies for absence.

54 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on any matter in which they had a disclosable pecuniary interest and should leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

55 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2016

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2016 were agreed as a correct record.

56 Public Question Time

An e-mail from Mrs George was circulated to Members of the Committee in relation to Future Fit and the intention to shift care out of acute hospital settings into community settings, the need for additional resources in the community to do this. Mrs George had received correspondence to say that no money would be released for investment in community services and urgent care centres which meant that 30% of hospital activity would be transferred to the community, without any resources committed to covering the additional costs. She felt that the demand on the Sustainability and Transformation Fund would be high and might be that no money at all would be allocated to Shropshire. GP services and community services were already stretched as was social care and it would not be possible to absorb the planned 30% transfer of activity away from hospitals. She asked that the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee make urgent representation to the CCG, to the Council and to local MPs on this issue.

The Chairman reported that he had sought further information from the CCG on this matter and had also raised the matter with the Joint HOSC Chair.

57 Member Question Time

There were no questions from Members.

58 West Midlands Ambulance Service Response Times

The Chairman welcomed the following representatives and thanked them for attending the meeting: Mark Docherty – Director of Clinical Commissioning and Service Development (WMAS), Michelle Brotherton – General Manager for West Mercia and Executive Nurse (WMAS), Cliff Medlicott – Community Response Manager (WMAS), Murray MacGregor – Communications Director (WMAS), Julie Davies – Director of Strategy and Service Redesign (Shropshire CCG) and Emma Pyrah – Commissioner Urgent Care (Shropshire CCG).

The Director of Clinical Commissioning and Service Development introduced a presentation (copy attached to the signed minutes). He acknowledged the challenge faced by the Ambulance Service in Shropshire and that meeting red targets in the county had been a struggle and continued to be so. Activity was increasing and February 2016 had been 23% busier than February 2015. Sometimes a day could be 30% busier than expected which caused major challenges. If more resources were available then the service could respond to the increase in activity.

He also stated that the change in clinical models at the hospitals had led to more ambulances travelling to Princess Royal Hospital relative to Royal Shrewsbury Hospital and this had led to an increase in job cycle time which had averaged 65 minutes, but in the last week had been 96 minutes. Service reconfigurations could be challenging for ambulance services and must be properly resourced. A 'vortex effect' meant that resources could be sucked into the centre and an ambulance in Telford could end up in Wolverhampton or even further away. This was partly why response times were challenged.

The Chairman asked if WMAS was involved in the Future Fit discussions and it was confirmed that this was the case.

The CCG Director of Strategy and Service Redesign said that the CCG did factor growth into the WMAS contract which was not done by all CCGs. It had also done some modelling in relation to stroke and maternity and paediatric services moving to Telford and £500,000 had been added to the contract reflecting that reconfiguration.

The Committee were informed that ambulance turnaround delays at Royal Shrewsbury Hospital and Princess Royal Hospital. It was clarified that paramedics had to stay with a patient until a clinical handover was made at the hospital. Ambulances were often delayed by over an hour and some Ambulance Services classified this as a serious incident. Although WMAS did not, it did measure these occurrences. If it was possible to reduce the turnaround delays of over one hour, it would equate to having an extra ambulance on the road straight away.

The Committee was concerned to hear that Shropshire had recently experienced 'zero status' for a period of time when the county had run out of ambulances as a result of hospital delays. This was not happening frequently but it was unacceptable that it had happened at all. The help of the whole health economy was needed to deliver a better and safe ambulance service.

The Director of Strategy and Service Redesign, Shropshire CCG, explained that the CCG was working closely with WMAS and SATH through the Strategic Resilience Group. Both CCGs had supported HALOs and these had started work in December along with two corridor nurses at each site from 10 am to 10 pm. The impact of this had been disappointing. She said that SATH would be asked to update the Strategic Resilience Group on the reasons for this. She also agreed to ask SATH for a clear definition of the role of Corridor Nurse.

The Director of Clinical Commissioning, WMAS, reported that an urgent meeting had been requested between the CCG, WMAS and SATH to address this issue.

Members asked if there were any exemplar sites for hospital handovers. Some hospitals, eg Sandwell, were able to manage pressures in a way that did not impact so severely on the Ambulance Service. The Director of Strategy and Service Redesign emphasised that a challenge faced by SATH was that there was nowhere close by to divert an ambulance to, as in other areas of the West Midlands.

In response to questions and comments from Members, the Director of Clinical Commissioning agreed that it was essential to get the system as a whole right. He referred to Shropshire having one of the highest rates of non-conveyance in the region, which was particularly good in relation to the average age of the population. A tipping point of 56 minutes had been identified – if an ambulance attended for longer than this time, the patient was less likely to go to hospital. Admission avoidance would help prevent frail elderly patients from decompensating in hospital. However attendance for this length of time was not always possible due to resource constraints. He felt that it was important to stop talking cost and start talking value - that WMAS offered value and that with a bit of investment, the value of the service could increase significantly further.

A Member of the Committee representing an electoral division bordering Wales said that expectant mothers were concerned that an ambulance would not convey them to hospital in time if needed. She emphasised the need for a good relationship with services over the border and getting ambulances back if they left the area.

The Committee discussed the significant funding issues facing all those delivering services in Shropshire and the need for the actual costs of delivering a safe health service in a sparse county to be recognised. The Director of Strategy and Service Redesign confirmed that Shropshire did not get funded differently even though it cost more to deliver services in sparse rural areas. Challenges needed to be made through the Strategic Transformation Programme.

The Committee felt that in the meantime it was important to maximise the resources that were available. Members heard that in other parts of the country Ambulance Services were working with Fire and Rescue Services. The Director of Clinical Commissioning, WMAS, felt that a person choosing to call the Ambulance Service would not want a fire engine and fire officer to attend and emphasised the need to deploy medically competent people. However, the Committee remarked that a number of Community First Responders were previously Fire Fighters and it had heard that the Fire and Rescue service was willing to work with the Ambulance Service. Diane Steiner, Acting Consultant in Public Health, remarked, although a fire officer could not act as a paramedic, they could be given additional training to enable them to attend medical emergencies to provide

support whilst waiting for an ambulance to arrive and were well dispersed throughout the county, so could have a positive impact on call-out times.

The Committee also heard about a pre hospital acute medical service pilot starting in April which would involve a GP providing advice within the WMAS governance structure and targeting frail and elderly patients. It was hoped that this pilot would fund itself but the risk was being taken by the CCG. A report back on this was requested.

Shropshire Council's Director of Adult Services recognised the work of WMAS within a complex environment. He felt that there was a renewed appetite to look at the system as a whole and to look at value, not cost. He referred to measures to reduce Delayed Transfers of Care, avoid admissions and he was optimistic about inroads into these issues.

The Committee also heard about a review by the CCG into inappropriate use of the Ambulance Service and frequent callers. It was agreed to share the outcomes of this report with the Committee.

It was agreed that reports on the following be brought back to the Committee at its meeting on 25 July 2016:

- An update on the action taken and the effectiveness of this on the handover situation at RSH and PRH (SATH, WMAS and CCG representatives to be present)
- An update on discussions and work undertaken on the potential for Fire and Rescue Service joint response to medical emergencies
- Outcome of the high intensity user scheme review
- An update on the effectiveness of the pre-hospital acute service with GP in car

The Member for Cleobury Mortimer also requested information to be forwarded on coverage provided by Community First Responders, to include numbers, distribution, qualifications and access to 4 x4 vehicles.

Members suggested that the Portfolio Holder for Rural Services and Communities be asked to attend the next meeting. It was also suggested that there was a role for Members of the Council in encouraging appropriate use of the Ambulance Service through attendance at Patient Groups and other forums.

59 Work Programme

The Chairman confirmed that dates of meetings to consider Quality Accounts would be circulated as soon as they were available.

Members requested further information around the Adult Social Care budget.

Signed	(Chairman)
5 (
Date:	